Beaufort County Library BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING Minutes – January 10, 2018 – 4:00 pm

The first scheduled meeting for 2018 was held at the Beaufort Branch Library.

<u>**Trustees</u>**: Bernard Kole, *Chair;* Anna Maria Tabernik, *Vice-chair*; Joseph Bogacz, Brenda Ladson Powell, Lynne Miller, Rosalie Richman, and Laura Sturkie.</u>

Absent: Eileen Fitzgerald and Tracey Robinson.

County Council Member: Councilman Steven Fobes, District 10.

Library Staff: Ray McBride, Director of Libraries; Ileana Herrick, Administrative Assistant.

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 4:11 p.m.

<u>Pledge of Allegiance</u>: Mr. Kole led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Public Comment: None.

<u>Minutes of October 11, 2017</u>: The minutes were unanimously approved as written on a motion from Ms. Tabernik and a second from Ms. Sturkie. There was a unanimous vote.

Correspondence/Memberships:

- There are three vacancies on the Library Board of Trustees (Districts 2, 5, and 8).
- Mr. Kole interviewed a good prospect who may be appointed to fill one of the vacant seats. Mr. Kole passed along this information to the Chairman of the County Council and the County Administrator.

Library Director's Report:

Mr. McBride thanked County Administration and County Council for their support over the last year, and stated the library would not be able to accomplish its goals without their support.

Mr. McBride presented his report:

- Bookmobile Update Report (see attachment)
 - The Bookmobile has been a success in its first six months of operation.
 - The Bookmobile manager will prepare an annual comprehensive report after one year of operation.
 - Ms. Tabernik added that the Sun City community is grateful to have access to this service.
 - o The Bookmobile provides the same services as any of our library branches.
- Library Director's Priorities for 2018 (see attachment)
 - This report reflects the objectives for this calendar year. Some objectives are already in process.
- Department "Top 5" Achievement Report (2017) (see attachment)

- The library staff will quantitatively measure the 2018 performance metrics.
- This report is due to the County Administration by the end of this month.
- <u>Page 3</u> The Library Administration will provide ten performance metrics for the library system (see attachment).
- <u>Page 4</u> List of ten performance metrics for 2018 and the staff responsible for providing the data.
- Financial Reports (see attachments)
 - Munis Financial Report as of December 31, 2017.
 - o Library Expenditure Report as of December 27, 2017.
 - Personnel Expenditures 48% of budget.
 - The library's overall expenditures are right on track at 49% for the 2018 fiscal year.
 - o 'Fines and Fees' and 'Trustees Checking Account' Reports
 - o Detailed Library Expenditures and Special Funds Reports
 - The 'Friends' and 'Foundation' provide approximately \$100,000 a year for library materials and programs, among other library needs.
- Library Organization Chart (see attachment)
 - The chart reflects the new county job titles.
 - There were ten (10) vacant positions as of January 22, 2018.
 - Seven (7) are in the process of being filled (as of January 22), and three (3) positions are currently vacant.

Mr. McBride added that salary increases and merit pay help our county employees' quality of life. The new salaries should help with employee retention even though much of our population is transient (i.e. military and retirees).

<u>CIP Beaufort County Comprehensive Plan – Community Facilities (see attachment)</u>
Mr. McBride drafted a new update to the Library Comprehensive Plan (additions in red).

Committee Reports

Advocacy Committee: None.

Finance Committee: See attachments.

Trustees Checking Account Report: (see attachment)

- Mr. Bogacz explained the report in detail.
 - The total balance remains almost the same for the last three months.

Impact Fees Report: (see attachment)

Mr. Bogacz explained the report in detail.
The total balance dropped to \$2.7M from \$2.9M since October 2017.

Fines and Fees Report and Bank Statement: (see attachment)

- Mr. Bogacz explained the reports in detail.
 - This revenue is eventually transferred to the County General Funds.

Budget Update FY2018: (see attachment)

- The budget may be revised to cover the merit pay adjustment after it is added in by County Finance.
- The Library Administration is working on the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget draft.

Foundation:

- The next board meeting will be Wednesday, January 17, at Bluffton Branch Library.
- The Fashion Show is a very significant fundraising event for the Foundation. The event is scheduled for March 5, 2018 in Belfair.
- The board is working on the logistics of the event (i.e. gift baskets, sponsorships).

Friends of the Library (FOL):

Beaufort Branch:

- The Friends have had an increase in membership within the last year.
- The next event is '*Books Sandwiched In*', starting January 30, 2018 at the USCB Art Center (Historic Campus).
- The Book Sale is their main fundraising event; the group is discussing the logistics for this year.

Bluffton Branch:

- They had a successful annual meeting.
- They purchased new teen furniture for the Bluffton Library.
- The Friends gave fantastic support to the 'Summer Reading Program' last year, and we are looking forward to it this year.

• Hilton Head Branch:

- The *Book Break Program* will start next Wednesday, and Mr. Bogacz is one of the presenters. He will present '*Citizens of London*'.
- o The Friends will start the movie presentations next Thursday.

• School Liaison:

• The committee will meet in the near future.

Policies and Procedures:

Fines and Fees Procedures:

- Ms. Tabernik mentioned the committee will review the *Fines and Fees Policy* as part of the annual budget process for the next fiscal year.
- The fines and fees may be adjusted if the cost of living goes up in the next fiscal year. The committee will have more information at the next board meeting.

Strategic Planning Committee:

- The first *Quarterly Progress Report* may be ready at the next board meeting in March.
- The 'Strategic Plan' is available online on the library website.

Challenged Materials Committee: None.

Ad Hoc Committee:

• The Library Director's annual evaluation is due at the board meeting in May.

Old Business:

Library Capital Improvement Plan Update: (see attachment)

- The purpose of this plan is to cut down the size of the proposed buildings and fit specific library services with each community within our budget limitations.
 - Many customers are using the 'Library WIFI' connections instead of the library public PCs.
 - More customers are checking out electronic materials (i.e. digital books or stream movies from *Hoopla*).
- The Bookmobile is added in the CIP (requested by the County Administration).
 - Due to the huge success of the *Bookmobile*, the library may expand library services with a second bookmobile in the future if approved by the board of trustees.
 - A second bookmobile is less expensive than a physical library facility.
 - o Impact fees will never generate enough money to build a physical library facility.

Mr. McBride presented a draft of the 'Library CIP Plan' to the board for their approval. Mr. McBride will submit the draft to the County Administration for further review and inclusion in the 'CIP Plan' for the next 10 years.

The board approved submitting this draft plan to County Administration for review and inclusion in the County CIP on a motion from Ms. Miller and a second from Mr. Bogacz. There was a unanimous vote.

New Business:

Executive Session: None.

Mr. Kole asked whether there was any other business. There being none, the meeting was adjourned at 5:14 p.m. on a motion from Ms. Tabernik and a second from Mr. Bogacz.

Respectfully submitted,

Kay Mubride

Ray McBride Library Director